
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Cabinet 

on Wednesday, 24 April 2019, at 10.00 a.m. 

in the Bindloss Room - Kendal Town Hall 

 
 
 
 

Membership 
 

Councillors 
 

Giles Archibald Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder 

Robin Ashcroft Culture and Leisure Portfolio Holder 

Jonathan Brook Deputy Leader and Housing, People and Innovation 
Portfolio Holder 

Philip Dixon Health and Wellbeing Portfolio Holder 

Andrew Jarvis Finance Portfolio Holder 

Dyan Jones Environment Portfolio Holder 

 
 
Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and 
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted 
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”. 
 
 
Thursday, 11 April 2019 
 
Debbie Storr, Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
 
 

For all enquiries, please contact Inge Booth, Senior Committee Services Officer. 

Telephone: 01539 793190 

 
Email: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  APOLOGIES   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any.  

2  CABINET EXECUTIVE DECISIONS  5 - 16 

 To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the Executive Decisions 
made by Cabinet on 20 March 2019. 

 

3  DELEGATED EXECUTIVE DECISIONS  17 - 18 

 To receive the Delegated Executive Decisions made by Portfolio Holders or 
Officers on 14 March 2019. 

 

4  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

5  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

6  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations 
or present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no 
later than 0:01am (one minute past midnight) two working days before the 
meeting.  Information on how to make the application can be obtained by 
viewing the Council’s Website www.southlakeland.gov.uk or by contacting the 
Committee Services Team on 01539 733333. 
 
(1) Questions and Representations 
 
 To receive any questions or representations which have been received 

from members of the public. 
 
(2) Deputations and Petitions 
 
 To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received from 

members of the public. 

 

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


7  FORWARD PLAN  19 - 24 

 To note the contents of the latest Forward Plan published on 26 March 2019.  

8  2018/19 FINAL ACCOUNTS REPORT - CARRY FORWARDS AND RE-
PROFILING REQUESTS  

25 - 34 

 To consider Revenue carry forward and Capital re-profiling requests relating to 
2018/19. 

 

9  CUMBRIA WIDE FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT FOR DISABLED 
ADAPTATIONS  

35 - 38 

 To consider the Council’s participation in the Cumbria Wide Agreement for the 
delivery of specific Disabled Facilities Adaptations. 

 

PART II   

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number) 

There are no items in this Part of the Agenda. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



111 
20.03.2019 Cabinet Executive Decisions 
 

 

EXECUTIVE DECISION NOTICE 
 
CABINET 
 
A record of the decisions made at the meeting of the Cabinet held on 
Wednesday, 20 March 2019, at 10.00 a.m. 
 

Present 
 

Councillors 
 

Giles Archibald (Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder) (Chairman) 
 

Robin Ashcroft Culture and Leisure Portfolio Holder 

Jonathan Brook Deputy Leader and Housing, People and Innovation Portfolio 
Holder 

Philip Dixon Health and Wellbeing Portfolio Holder 

Andrew Jarvis Finance Portfolio Holder 

Dyan Jones Environment Portfolio Holder 

 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Graham Vincent (Economy and Assets 
Portfolio Holder). 
 
Also in attendance at the meeting were Shadow Executive Members Ben Berry (Shadow 
Cabinet Leader (Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio)), John Holmes (Shadow Cabinet 
(Finance Portfolio)) and Janette Jenkinson (Shadow Cabinet (Health and Wellbeing 
Portfolio)). 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Shadow Executive Members James Airey 
(Shadow Cabinet (Economy and Assets Portfolio)), Tom Harvey (Shadow Cabinet Deputy 
Leader (Housing, People and Innovation Portfolio)) and Helen Irving (Shadow Cabinet 
(Culture and Leisure Portfolio)), and Mark Wilson (Leader of the Labour Group). 
 
Also in attendance was Colin Cox, Director of Public Health. 

 
Officers 

 
Inge Booth Senior Committee Services Officer 

Lawrence Conway Chief Executive 

Rachel Earnshaw Public Protection Officer 

Ian Hassall Assistant Director Strategic Development 

Fiona Inston Public Protection Manager 

Shelagh McGregor Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

Emma Nichols Community Engagement Officer 

Fraser Robertson Senior Communications Officer 

Simon Rowley Assistant Director Neighbourhood Services 

Debbie Storr Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 

David Sykes Director People and Places 

Sion Thomas Corporate Asset Manager 

 

Page 5

Item No.2



112 
20.03.2019 Cabinet Executive Decisions 
 

 

CEX/94 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENT 
 
The Leader referred to the recent tragedies in Africa and New Zealand and those 
families who had suffered as a result.  He invited all present to join him in observing a 
minute’s silence. 
 

CEX/95 CABINET EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 
 
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the 
Executive Decisions made by Cabinet on 6 February 2019. 
 

CEX/96 DELEGATED EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 
 
RESOLVED – That the Delegated Executive Decisions made by Portfolio Holders 
or Officers on 31 January 2019 be received. 
 

CEX/97 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised. 
 

CEX/98 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS 
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the agenda. 
 

CEX/99 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the agenda. 
 

CEX/100 FORWARD PLAN 
 
RESOLVED – That the contents of the Forward Plan published on 19 February 
2019 be noted. 
 

CEX/101 CONSTITUTION -  OFFICER DELEGATIONS 
 
Summary 
 
The Deputy Leader and Housing, People and Innovation Portfolio Holder introduced 
the report.  With regards to Customer Connect and the new operating model and 
structure of the Council, new arrangements were to be implemented from 1 April 2019. 
This required a review of the Council’s delegation scheme and proper officer 
appointments. The Monitoring Officer’s annual review of the Constitution was due to be 
presented to Council on 28 March 2019, and that report would include an update on 
the delegations from Council/Committees and an update of the Proper Officer 
appointments. 
 
This report dealt with those executive functions which were delegated to officers. 
Appendix 1 set out the proposed changes to reflect the new structure. These would be 
kept under review as implementation of the new structure continued. 
 

Page 6



113 
20.03.2019 Cabinet Executive Decisions 
 

 

Members were asked to agree the revised Delegation Scheme with effect from 1 April 
2019. The report indicated that, whilst the role of Legal, Governance and Democracy 
Lead Specialist was still being recruited to, those particular delegations would be within 
the remit of the Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources, who would consider 
any sub-delegations that might be required on an interim basis until the new post 
holder was in place. 
 
The Deputy Leader and Housing, People and Innovation Portfolio Holder, in closing, 
thanked officers for their work and for the professional way in which the exercise was 
being conducted.  The Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder echoed 
his thanks, also expressing appreciation for a clear and well-written report. 
 
Decision 
 
RESOLVED – That the revisions to the Delegation Scheme to Officers from the 
Leader/Cabinet, as detailed in Appendix 1 to the report, be approved with effect 
from 1 April 2019, with the interim arrangements as detailed. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The Constitution underpins the Council’s decision making processes in achieving the 
aim and objectives of the Council’s priorities. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected 
 
The Council is required to ensure that its delegations are reviewed and updated as 
appropriate.  The decision ensures that appropriate delegations are in place. 
 

CEX/102 INFORMATION REQUESTS 2019 
 
Summary 
 
The Deputy Leader and Housing, People and Innovation Portfolio Holder presented a 
report providing detailed information on the number of Information Requests which had 
been made in 2018 under the Freedom of Information Act, and Environmental 
Information Regulations and Data Protection Act. 
 
The Deputy Leader and Housing, People and Innovation Portfolio Holder felt that what 
was of particular note was the fact that the number of recorded requests received by 
the Council had increased year on year since 2005.  He drew attention to a 
typographical error within the table at paragraph 3.12 of the report where the total 
number of requests received in 2018 was shown as 405.  In fact, 825 requests had 
been received in 2018, compared to 80 in 2005.  The reported indicated that the trend 
for increases in numbers of requests was continuing and, so far, from 1 January to 
14 February 2019, the Council had received 144 requests.  Response times had 
slightly increased from last year, caused in part by the increasing numbers of requests 
to the Council and corporate capacity.  86% of requests had, however, been responded 
to within the statutory 20 working day limit. 
 
The Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder was proud that the 
Council’s high standard was being maintained and thanked offers for seamlessly 
dealing with the volume of requests in a timely manner. 
 

Page 7



114 
20.03.2019 Cabinet Executive Decisions 
 

 

Decision 
 
RESOLVED – That the report be received. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The decision links to the Council’s values of empowering people, excellence and being 
open and transparent. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected 
 
Failure to comply with the statutory provisions of the Freedom of Information Act 2000, 
the Environmental Information Regulations 2004 and the Data Protection Act 2018 
could lead to enforcement action by the Information Commissioners Office. 
 

CEX/103 CUMBRIA PUBLIC HEALTH STRATEGY 
 
Note - The Health and Wellbeing Portfolio Holder wished to place on record the 
fact that he had arrived late to the meeting due to the 9.34 a.m. Northern Rail 
train from Windermere having been cancelled.  The Leader and Promoting South 
Lakeland Portfolio Holder further highlighted the marked deterioration in the 
service delivered by the company, which had also been noted by local Members 
of Parliament. 
 
Summary 
 
The Health and Wellbeing Portfolio Holder introduced the report and explained that 
Cabinet was being given an opportunity to consider the draft Strategy prior to 
presentation of the document to Council for adoption as part of the Council’s Budget 
and Policy Framework.  He drew attention to how South Lakeland District Council 
interacted with the wider determinants of health and made particular reference to the 
issue of Air Quality and the challenge of educating people to use sustainable forms of 
transport.  He commended the Strategy, wishing to see people continue to live long 
and happy lives in South Lakeland. 
 
The Leader sought clarification with regard to the target date for carbon neutrality.  
Colin Cox, Director of Public Health, who had led on the creation and development of 
the Strategy, informed Members that the international target date for carbon neutrality 
was 2050 and explained that the Strategy indicated that Cumbria should not lag 
behind.  The Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder, however, pointed 
out that the substantive report on the agenda made reference to Cumbria’s aim to 
become a carbon neutral county by 2030, and asked for this to be clarified. 
 
Mr Cox explained that, although employed by Cumbria County Council, he was aware 
of the critical roles that the district councils had to play in relation to public health.  He 
presented the Strategy, thanking the District Council’s Public Protection Officer, Public 
Protection Manager and Principal Culture, Arts and Events Officer for their active 
engagement. 
 
The report indicated how officers with multi-disciplinary backgrounds and expertise 
from South Lakeland District Council (SLDCE), the other district councils, Cumbria 
County Council and the Lake District National Park Authority had contributed to the 
writing and the shaping of specific thematic areas. 
 

Page 8



115 
20.03.2019 Cabinet Executive Decisions 
 

 

The Public Health Strategy sat under the Cumbria Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
2019-2029. This strategy was currently in production, and would be presented to the 
Cumbria Health and Wellbeing board in April.  This was a document which set out how 
the Health and Wellbeing Board would work together over the next ten years. All 
Clinical Commissioning Groups, local authorities and NHS England plans would need 
to take the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy into account. 
 
The vision of the Cumbria Joint Public Health Strategy was to, “enable Cumbrian 
communities to be healthy and to tackle health inequalities.”  This corresponded with 
the existing SLDC Public Health Strategy, and the proposed Health and Wellbeing 
Strategy.  
 
The Cumbria Joint Public Health Strategy took a different approach to previous public 
health strategies as, instead of focusing on individuals, it acknowledged the conditions 
in which a person was born, lived, worked and how ages impacted on their access and 
ability to live a healthier life.  These were known as the wider determinants of health, 
and included housing, education, employment, working conditions, the natural 
environment, food production and water. These were incorporated into Figure 1 of the 
report – the wider determinants of health and how SLDC interacts with these different 
layers. Estimates varied, however, it was broadly accepted that health care was 
accountable for approximately 10% of the contribution to health.  This meant that, 
whilst access to good quality health care was very important, health was primarily 
determined by socio-economic factors. 
 
The framework of the Strategy was based on the “Five Capitals Model,” which included 
the following:- 
 

 Natural Capital (Planet): A high quality natural environment that provides 
opportunities for engagement with the natural world. 

 Human Capital (People): People with the skills, knowledge, and experience that 
give them the capacity to take part in society and have meaningful and fulfilling 
lives. 

 Social Capital (Participation): A good social infrastructure, with networks and 
institutions that allow people to connect to each other. 

 Physical Capital (Place): A good physical infrastructure including housing, 
transport, and a commercial environment that promotes healthy behaviours. 

 Financial Capital (Prosperity): Adequate financial resources that are fairly 
distributed. 

 
This Strategy provided a strong framework which demonstrated the cross cutting 
nature of the work undertaken by SLDC.  Adopting this strategic approach would 
improve the Council’s contribution to promoting, enabling and providing services which 
improved the health of its communities. 
 
The Joint Cumbria Public Health Strategy correlated strongly with the developing SLDC 
Council Plan.  The major themes were: health and environment; housing and 
communities; and economy and culture.  These had all been incorporated within the 
Strategy.  It also included sub themes of reducing inequality and sustainability, which 
were strongly embedded within the Strategy document. 
 
The report detailed the key topics and aims within the Strategy and how SLDC 
contributed to them. 
 

Page 9



116 
20.03.2019 Cabinet Executive Decisions 
 

 

The current SLDC Public Health Strategy was for the time period 2014-19, and 
therefore expired this year.  The new Joint Cumbria Public Health Strategy had been 
co-written by SLDC, the other Cumbrian local authorities and other partners.  This 
Strategy provided a well-developed framework for actions on the wider determinants of 
health.  It included many aims which correlated with SLDC’s own Council Plan.  Due to 
its wider determinants focus, it was felt to be an appropriate strategy for a district 
council to adopt. 
 
Implementation of the Strategy would require a collaborative cross-organisational 
approach, bringing together different sectors and specialisms.  Following adoption, 
SLDC together with other local authorities would work with partners on developing an 
approach to implement the Strategy.  If this was to be through the Health and 
Wellbeing Forums, then a review of this group would need to take place.  A South 
Lakeland-based group setup around this Strategy framework would need to mirror the 
different aspects of health which were included in the Strategy. 
 
Mr Cox was thanked for his recent, enlightening presentation to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee.  It was indicated that the Shadow Cabinet’s supported the 
Strategy, particular reference being made to the importance of addressing social 
isolation and for the potential for authorities to involve charities and organisations in 
this regard. 
 
A query having been raised by Councillor John Holmes, the Deputy Leader and 
Housing, People and Innovation Portfolio Holder explained that there was no lack of 
will on the part of the Council with regard to bringing forward appropriate building 
regulations and policies and encouraging developers for the need to future proofing of 
homes to make them suitable for adaptation for accessibility.  Robust conversations 
were taking place, however, there was some resistance from some sectors of the 
building community.  The issue had been discussed at the Housing Advisory Group, 
however, the Housing, People and Innovation Portfolio Holder suggested that this 
could be put back on the agenda.  Although the Group included representatives from 
South Lakes Housing, he also undertook to extend an invitation to Councillor Holmes to 
join in the Group’s discussion in this regard.  The Director People and Places further 
informed Members that Council would, on 28 March 2019, be considering approval of 
development management policies which included reference to Policy DM11 which 
was concerned with accessible and adaptable homes.  Mr Cox added that the Strategy 
referred to similar issues, for example the development of housing that met the 
appropriate standards. 
 
The need to face up to the fact that access to water supplies could become problematic  
was raised, with the largest problem relating to this being that of growth in population. 
 
The Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder stressed the Council’s 
willingness to work collaboratively across tiers in order to achieve the aspirations of the 
Public Health Strategy, as well as the need for cross-party support.  He highlighted in 
particular the importance of working together to address Climate Change and the 
degrading Biodiversity, seeking clarity around what steps would be taken to move 
forward to achieving net carbon neutrality and addressing income inequality and 
poverty. 
 
The Health and Wellbeing Portfolio Holder felt that the discussion demonstrated how 
the issue of health and wellbeing cut across everything carried out by the Council. 
 

Page 10



117 
20.03.2019 Cabinet Executive Decisions 
 

 

The Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder thanked Mr Cox for his 
contribution to the meeting and expressed appreciation for the support of the Shadow 
Cabinet. 
 
Decision 
 
RESOLVED – That the draft Cumbria Joint Public Health Strategy be approved 
for recommendation to Council for adoption as part of the Council’s Budget and 
Policy Framework. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
The Cumbria Public Health Strategy directly relates to all of the Council Plan priorities 
of Health and Environment, Economy and Culture and Housing and Communities, with 
sub headings and aims within the document relating to all of these areas. 
 
The main aims of the Cumbria Public Health Strategy are to improve public health and 
to reduce health inequalities.  This correlates with the SLDC Council Plan which 
includes a specific aim around reducing inequalities across the three headline themes. 
 
Subject to adoption by Council, the Cumbria Public Health Strategy will supersede the 
existing SLDC Public Health Strategy 2014-19 as a Budget and Policy Framework 
document. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected 
 
Not adopting the new county-wide Public Health Strategy – This would not be the 
recommended options as it would mean South Lakeland was working towards a 
separate public health strategy and framework to the rest of the county. 
 

CEX/104 KENDAL MARKET REVIEW 
 
Note – During consideration of the item, Councillor Janette Jenkinson declared a 
non-pecuniary interest by virtue of the fact that she was a Director of Ulverston 
Community Enterprise, which managed Ulverston Market.  She remained in the 
meeting during the discussion and voting on the item, although with no voting 
rights as a Member of the Shadow Cabinet. 
 
Summary 
 
In the absence of the Economy and Assets Portfolio Holder, the Deputy Leader and 
Housing, People and Innovation Portfolio Holder presented a report, informing Cabinet 
that Markets were in decline nationally but that, with the right management, willingness 
to adapt, change and through innovative thinking, markets could thrive and deliver 
many diverse benefits to towns and communities. Economic benefits were, perhaps, 
the most obvious, but the social value of markets and the community cohesion they 
encouraged were equally important. Markets could also help regenerate town centres, 
promote healthy eating and support “greener” lifestyles and more sustainable patterns 
of commerce. South Lakeland District Council (SLDC) was fully committed to securing 
Kendal Market’s future and to ensure its success in being an economic driver for the 
Town. 
 

Page 11



118 
20.03.2019 Cabinet Executive Decisions 
 

 

The report indicated that the Council had appointed Lambert Smith Hampton 
(Manchester) to undertake a review of the markets to understand its strengths, 
weaknesses, opportunities and threats. The review had also included a public 
consultation to understand user and trader perception, as well as reviewing the current 
operating model and proposing new ways of working to help improve and rejuvenate 
the market into a successful key driver for the Town. The report, which was attached at 
Appendix 1 to the substantive report, had concluded that a new operating model and 
outsourcing the management of the indoor and outdoor market was the preferred 
option. 
 
A study, attached at Appendix 1 to the substantive report, had previously been 
commissioned by SLDC and completed by Quarterbridge Project Management Ltd in 
2008 and the study had concluded that the Indoor and Outdoor Markets were failing to 
attract visitors in the volumes that were needed to deliver a sustainable weekly market, 
and were impacting negatively on the success of the Town centre as a result.  The 
report had identified a series of factors that were considered to be the “Root Causes” of 
the perceived problem, and had proposed a number of interventions to turn around the 
current failing status. The findings of this report had fed into the more recent Lambert 
Smith Hampton (LSH) report. 
 
The public consultation undertaken by LSH had confirmed many of the thoughts and 
conclusions reached in the market review, with some very strong data in support of 
taking positive actions to change the current model to avoid a further decline.  The 
evidence had come from traders, users (shoppers) and the wider Kendal business 
community (stakeholders).  The survey had raised concern over the speed of decline 
which, if allowed to continue, would result in the need for more radical transformation.  
When compared to towns with successful markets, it was clear that Kendal had fallen 
behind in terms of its weekly and indoor market offering.  This might not be the primary 
reason why the town had such low levels of tourist visitors during the week, but it was, 
perhaps, one of the strong contributing factors.  The very low levels of users in the age 
groups below 35 years was a real concern, and change had to address the 
needs/wants of these groups if the market was to remain sustainable in the long term. 
The Grimsey report 2013 had confirmed that, in May 2013, 9.7% of retail sales had 
been from the internet.  This could be the reason for the low level of under 35 year olds 
and the market, therefore, had to work hard to offer an experience as well as good 
quality goods. 
 
Based on the Quarterbridge review, the current LSH review and stakeholder feedback, 
it was, therefore, proposed to consider outsourcing the management of the markets to 
an experienced market operator. To consider the outsourcing option, it was proposed 
to proceed with Stage 1 of a two-stage procurement process to help understand what 
interest there was in the private sector to take on the running of Kendal markets, 
whether that be running the markets as one or as two separate markets; to understand 
the financial implications this would have on the Council’s revenue budget; and to 
understand the economic benefits that a new operator could bring to the town and what 
Social Value could be added through a different operating model for the markets. In 
terms of the management agreement for the market operator, the build, operate and 
transfer model (BOT) was likely to be the preferred recommended route for the future 
operation and management of the markets.  This could include following 
characteristics:- 
 

Page 12



119 
20.03.2019 Cabinet Executive Decisions 
 

 

 Single agreement or two separate agreements to run the indoor and outdoor 
market. 

 Agreements to take the form of a service and lease agreement.  With the operator 
having a service agreement with SLDC to run the markets for a period of years, 
subject to various Key Performance Indicators (to be agreed).  Whilst the service 
agreement was in place, there would be a lease to occupy the property of the 
indoor market.  The service agreement would give the right to manage the charter 
market on behalf of SLDC. When this agreement fell away at the end of the term, 
the right to occupy the property would also fall away, with no protection under 
Landlord and Tenant Acts for the right of renewal. 

 Extension to the term of the service agreement, say a ten year initial, with option for 
a further ten years, based upon appropriate business plan, previous performance 
and meeting the objectives and KPIs in the initial agreement. 

 
The BOT model would not transfer ownership, nor any management rights beyond the 
initial term.  The rights to operate the market would also need to be subject to fulfilling 
the commitments in terms of transformation/investment as proposed in the bid 
document and service contract. 
 
Details of the proposed programme of work for this process were provided within the 
report. 
 
It was proposed that Stage 1 of the procurement process would look to ascertain the 
following:- 
 

 Amount of interest from the private sector and their preferred operating models. 

 Experience of the operators expressing an interest. 

 General vision and business plan put forward by interested parties. 

 Quality and reputation of said interested parties. 

 Proof of understanding the current problems and potential solutions to these 
problems and what social value and what economic drivers these solutions offer. 

 Investment commitments – Input from Operator/expectations from SLDC. 

 Financial implications for the Council. 

 Financial stability of the interested parties. 
 
The Deputy Leader and Housing, People and Innovation Portfolio Holder drew 
attention to the alternative options detailed within the report, and stressed the fact that 
there was no intention to close the markets.  He stressed that the purpose of the 
exercise was purely to explore how to make the market flourish, and he highlighted 
Altrincham market as an example. 
 
The Corporate Asset Manager reiterated the fact that markets were in decline 
nationally and drew attention to the resulting fall in the value of revenue from the 
market for the Council.  He highlighted the potential for the correct, innovative operator 
to reserve the trend.  The Corporate Asset Manager elaborated on the consultations 
which had been carried out with traders, the public and other stakeholders, as detailed 
within the report.  He reminded Members that the decision today was purely with 
regard to proceeding to Stage 1 of a procurement exercise calling for expressions of 
interest to take on the management of the Kendal Indoor and Outdoor Markets and 
that, following this process, a report would be bought back to a future meeting of 
Cabinet with further information on operational models should outsourcing become a 
firm proposal. 
 

Page 13



120 
20.03.2019 Cabinet Executive Decisions 
 

 

In response to a query raised, the Corporate Asset Manager confirmed that making the 
market an attractive space formed part of the review and that consideration was being 
given to the erection of a canopy structure over the Outdoor Market area, with the 
intention also for the provision of uniform stalls. 
 
It was indicated that the Shadow Cabinet was in support of the proposal, however, a 
query was raised with regard to the potential involvement and provision of funding from 
stakeholders for the package.  Attention was drawn, for example, to the fact that the 
Ulverston BID had provided funding for the employment of an officer to promote the 
market in that area.  The Corporate Asset Manager explained that, although traders 
had worked together with Kendal BID in terms of the review, the issue of funding from 
stakeholders had not been considered.  The potential for funding contribution from 
stakeholders could, however, be considered moving forward. 
 
The Corporate Asset Manager, in response to a request, explained that both himself 
and the Director People and Places had recently met with Ulverston Community 
Enterprise, indicating that they would share any information on initiatives following 
Stage 1 of the exercise. 
 
The Finance Portfolio Holder, acknowledging Kendal Market’s valuable role, drew 
attention to the fact that a refreshed offer could be a major asset to the Town and 
stimulate local business.  He also drew attention to the example of Altrincham’s 
revitalised market.  He pointed out, however, the need for third party support in this 
matter and also stressed the fact that the current arrangement delivered a significant 
financial contribution to the Council each year.  There was a need to understand what 
was being transferred and the financial implications and the Finance Portfolio Holder 
explained that, for these reasons, he was pleased that this was to be a two stage 
process. 
 
The Corporate Asset Manager wished to place on record the fact that the Altrincham 
model, which had been a more ambitious project, was not what was being proposed for 
Kendal and was being used purely as an example of vibrancy. 
 
Decision 
 
RESOLVED – That 
 
(1) approval be given to proceed to Stage 1 of a two-stage procurement 
exercise calling for expressions of interest from interested parties to take on the 
management of Kendal Indoor and Outdoor Market; and 
 
(2) the terms for Stage 1 tender/expression of interest be delegated to the 
Director People and Places (before 1 April 2019) and the Director Customer and 
Commercial Services (post 1 April 2019), prior to officers returning to Cabinet to 
seek further approval to proceed with Stage 2 of the procurement exercise. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
To proceed with Stage 1 of a two stage procurement exercise in order to determine 
what interest there is in managing the indoor/outdoor market by an experienced, 
innovative and well established market operator and to understand what added social 
value and economic benefit can be achieved as well as understanding the full financial 
implications for the Council in outsourcing the management of Kendal market. 
 

Page 14



121 
20.03.2019 Cabinet Executive Decisions 
 

 

The decision links to the following Council Plan priorities:- 
 
Economy 
 
- Engagement with the private sector and public sector partners will be central to our 
approach to helping grow and develop the economy. 
 
- We will when opportunities present themselves make best use of our property 
portfolio to support economic growth, through the use of our current and future asset 
base. 
 
Health and Wellbeing 
 
- We will encourage best use of our distinctive environment as a location for attracting 
cultural activities and events that strengthen the district’s visitor economy and the 
health and wellbeing of our residents. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected 
 
SLDC to retain the management of the market and maintain the status quo. This this 
not considered viable for the market or Town based on the current trend as shown in 
the financial section of the report and as noted within the public consultation. It is 
possible that, without intervention, the market may cease to exist such is the rate of 
decline. 
 
SLDC to appoint a market officer/manager with experience in economic development 
and market management to develop and drive the market forward. Whilst this is looked 
at as a favourable option, concern is raised over an appointment of an individual and 
their track record. It would be difficult to ascertain the experience and attribute any 
market success through a formal interview process. Generally, an individual’s success 
will be backed up by a strong innovative market management company. This would be 
explored further if Stage 1 of the two stage procurement process raises concern for the 
Council in outsourcing the management of the market. 
 
To close the market. This has not been considered because of the potential the market 
has to offer Kendal, the economic driver a thriving market can be for the Town and the 
importance of the Market Charter for the Town. 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 11.05 a.m. 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



11 
14.03.2019 Delegated Executive Decisions 
 

 

EXECUTIVE DECISION NOTICE 
 
DELEGATED EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 
 
A record of delegated decisions made by individual Portfolio holders or officers on 
Thursday, 14 March 2019. 
 
The reports (unless exempt under Section 100(B)(2) of the Local Government Act 
1972, on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12 A of the Act as amended by the Local Government 
(Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006 by virtue of the Paragraphs indicated 
and, in all the circumstances of the case, it is considered that the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing it) are available 
for inspection from the Solicitor to the Council, South Lakeland House, Kendal.   
 

DEX/6 LOCALLY IMPORTANT PROJECTS 2019 

(Director People and Places) 
 
Summary 
 
Consideration was given to grants which had been recommended by the Locally 
Important Projects (LIPs) Panel. 
 
The New Homes Bonus had commenced in April 2011 and Cabinet had established 
that 40% of the funds would be apportioned to LIPs.  LIPs funding could be used to 
support the delivery of appropriate infrastructure works such as additional, or extension 
of, social facilities and improvements to paths, walkways and the local environment. 
Parish and town councils and community organisations were eligible to apply for 
funding for a LIP.   Projects would have to meet local community aspirations and 
needs, address community infrastructure needs and provide good value for money and 
deliverability. 
 
A seventh round of bids had been opened in December 2018 and 27 applications had 
been received. The applications had been considered by Members, with officer 
support, and had been scored against an agreed criteria which included value to the 
community and disadvantaged groups, links to Council Plan priorities and a high level 
of match funding and partner buy-in.  Grant awards would be subject to any requests 
for clarification and relevant criteria being satisfied, and the signing of a funding 
agreement. 
 
Decision 
 
(1) The grants be awarded, as recommended by the Locally Important 
Projects Panel, shown in paragraph 3.6 of the report and set out below:- 
 

ORGANISATION PROJECT PROPOSED 
GRANT 

Argles Memorial Hall Upgrade to Windows in Hall £2,000 

Arnside Educational 
Institute 

Stage and Facilities 
Refurbishment 

£5,000 

Arnside Parish Council Pier Railing Replacement £5,000 

Crosthwaite Exchange Upgrades to Kitchen £2,000 

Dent Parish Council Fencing around Playground £3,000 

Page 17

Item No.3



12 
14.03.2019 Delegated Executive Decisions 
 

 

ORGANISATION PROJECT PROPOSED 
GRANT 

Ford Park Community 
Group 

Infrastructure Improvements £5,000 

Furness Youth Theatre New Printer £250 

Kendal Civic Society Nobles Rest Entrance £12,000 

Levens Parish Council Levens Village Hall £40,000 

Levens Playing Field 
Committee 

Levens Playing Field 
Development 

£7,500 

Preston Patrick Memorial 
Hall 

Car Park Resurface £2,000 

Quaker Tapestry New Entrance Facilities £3,700 

Space2Create New Reception Facilities £7,500 

Stainton Parish Council B4RN for Stainton £20,000 

Staveley Parish Council Jacks Corner – Community 
Space 

£2,700 

The Coniston Institute Toilet Block £20,000 

The New Hutton Institute Kitchen Extension £5,000 

Ulverston Town Council North Lonsdale Road Play Area £20,000 

Windermere and Bowness 
Civic Society 

Accessibility to Biskey Howe 
Point 

£2,271 

   

Total recommended:  £164,921 

 
(2) Officers be authorised, in consultation with the Solicitor to the Council, to 
finalise terms of the separate funding agreements with each organisation. 
 
Reasons for Decision 
 
This will support the Council Plan’s Housing priority – “We will continue to use our 
resources (e.g. New Homes Bonus and Second Homes Fund) and assess how they 
are best applied to different delivery models, to help build affordable housing and to 
support locally important projects.” 
 
The allocation of funding to Locally Important Projects supports the delivery of 
appropriate infrastructure works which address priorities identified in local communities. 
 
Alternative Options Considered and Rejected 
 
The recommendations for allocating the Locally Important Projects funds have been 
based on an approved objective assessment process.  No alternatives are available if 
the funding is to be allocated within the scheme. 

Page 18



 

1 

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
NOTICE OF FORTHCOMING KEY DECISIONS, PRIVATE EXECUTIVE MEETINGS AND 

BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK DECISIONS 
AS PUBLISHED ON 26 MARCH 2019 

 
The Council is required to give 28 days’ notice when Key Decisions are to be made, and 
when an executive meeting is to be held in private. The Notice has been drafted to comply 
with that requirement. It is available for inspection on the Council’s website as well as at 
South Lakeland House, Kendal and sets out the following:- 
 
(1) the matters which the Executive (also known as the Cabinet) believes fall within the 

definition of a Key Decision (see definition below) to be taken by the Executive or a 
Senior Officer of the Council; 

 
(2) details of any private meeting (see definition below) of the Executive; and 

 
(3) proposals for the recommendation to Council of any plan, strategy or budget that 

forms part of the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework, and its timetable and 
arrangements for consultation. The policies which make up the Budget and Policy 
Framework can be found in Article 4, Part 2 of the Council’s Constitution, viewable on 
the Council’s website www.southlakeland.gov.uk 

 
(Budget and Policy Framework Decisions are not Key Decisions (i.e. they are not 
Executive decisions but are decided by the Full Council; although the Executive may 
make recommendations to Council about them). In the spirit of openness and 
transparency the Council has decided to publicise the decision making process for 
such matters in the same manner as for Key Decisions.) 

 
Documentation 
 
Reports, as well as any background information, will be available for public inspection five 
working days before the date of the meeting at which the decision is going to made. 
However, some of the reports may contain confidential information and, in that case, will not 
be available to the public. 
 
When the Executive is going to consider a confidential report, at least 28 days’ notice will be 
given of the intention to hold the meeting in private. A Notice to this effect will be published 
on the Council’s website.  
 
Background Information 
 
If you wish to inspect background information, which will inform the decision-making process, 
contact the Lead Officer identified in the Notice as dealing with that matter. When the agenda 
for the meeting is published on the Council’s website, normally at least 5 working days before 
the meeting, these documents will also be made available via the website.  However, you will 
not be allowed to access any papers which contain exempt or confidential information. 
 
Representations (views you wish to make) 
 
If you wish to make a representation, either about one of the Key Decisions listed (where the 
meeting is to be held in private), or that an Executive meeting should be open to the public, 
you must write to the Lead Officer identified as dealing with that decision with your reasons 
why the meeting should not be held in private. This must be received at least five clear 
working days before the date of the meeting. 
 

Page 19

Item No.7



 

2 

Decision Notice 
 
A Decision Notice for each Key Decision, or other Executive decision, will be produced as 
soon as practicable after the decision has been taken.  These Decision Notices will be 
available for inspection at South Lakeland House, Kendal and on the Council’s website. 
 
Urgent Decisions 
 
The Law and the Council’s Constitution provide for urgent decisions to be made provided 
certain criteria are met and relevant Notices published accordingly.  None of the decisions 
detailed in this Notice are deemed to be Urgent Decisions - unless expressly stated. 
 
Key Decision 
 
This definition was adopted by Council on Thursday, 17 December 2015 and is as follows :- 
 
“An executive decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on 
communities in two or more Wards of the Council and/or is likely to result in the Authority 
incurring expenditure or making savings above £100,000.” 
 
Private Meetings 
 
In regard to this Notice, private meetings are meetings of the Executive, or part of a meeting, 
during which the public are excluded as a result of confidential or exempt information being 
discussed. A reason will be given why it is felt that there is a need for the public to be 
excluded. If you wish to make a representation regarding the intention to hold the meeting in 
private, you must follow the procedure shown above under “Representations”. 
 
The District Council’s Executive Members are:- 
 
Cllr Giles Archibald – Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder 
Cllr Jonathan Brook – Deputy Leader and Housing, People and Innovation Portfolio Holder 
Cllr Robin Ashcroft – Culture and Leisure Portfolio Holder 
Cllr Graham Vincent – Economy and Assets Portfolio Holder 
Cllr Dyan Jones – Environment Portfolio Holder 
Cllr Andrew Jarvis – Finance Portfolio Holder 
Cllr Philip Dixon –Health and Wellbeing Portfolio Holder 
 
The District Council’s Chief Officers are:- 
 
Lawrence Conway – Chief Executive 
Debbie Storr – Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer) 
David Sykes – Director People and Places 
Shelagh McGregor – Assistant Director (Resources) and Chief Finance Officer 
 
The District Council’s Assistant Directors are:- 
 
Ian Hassall –Assistant Director Strategic Development 
Simon McVey – Assistant Director Performance and Innovation 
Simon Rowley – Assistant Director of Neighbourhood Services 

Page 20



 

3 

 
 

Non-Key Budget and Policy Framework Decision - Development Management Policies 
and Arnside & Silverdale AONB Development Plans Documents 

  

To request Council to adopt, as part of the Development Plan for South Lakeland, the 
Development Management Policies and Arnside & Silverdale AONB Development Plans 
Documents, on receipt of the Inspector's reports on the conclusion of the independent 
examination of both documents (expected in October or November 2018). 

Proposed Decision Maker (Decision Date): Council (28 Mar 2019) 

Date notice first published: 10 August 2018 

(If Key or Private, decision cannot be until after 7 September 2018) 

Open/Exempt: Open 

Relevant reports/background papers which are/will be available: 
 Final versions of the Development Management Policies and Arnside & Silverdale AONB 
Development Plans Documents (DPDs). 
 
The Inspector's reports following the independent  examination of both DPDs. 

Lead Officer: Alastair McNeill, Development Plans Manager a.mcneill@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Assistant Director: Assistant Director Strategic Development 

Portfolio Holder: Housing, People and Innovation Portfolio Holder (Cllr Jonathan Brook) 

 
 

Non-Key Budget and Policy Framework Decision - Cumbria Public Health Strategy 

  
To consider adoption of the Cumbria Public Health Strategy in place of the existing Public 
Health Strategy in the Policy Framework. 

Proposed Decision Maker (Decision Date): Council (28 Mar 2019) 

Also considered by/to be considered by: Overview and Scrutiny Committee (1 Feb 2019) 
Cabinet (20 Mar 2019) 

Date notice first published: 21 December 2018 

(If Key or Private, decision cannot be until after 18 January 2019) 

Open/Exempt: Open 

Relevant reports/background papers which are/will be available: 
 Cumbria Public Health Strategy 

Lead Officer: Rachel Earnshaw, Public Protection Officer r.earnshaw@southlakeland.gov.uk, 
Fiona Inston, Public Protection Manager Fiona.Inston@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Assistant Director: Assistant Director Neighbourhood Services 

Portfolio Holder: Health and Wellbeing Portfolio Holder (Cllr Philip Dixon) 

 
 

Page 21



 

4 

 Key Decision - Cumbria Wide Framework for Disabled Facilities Adaptations * NEW * 

  
To seek approval to participate in the procurement exercise, led by Carlisle City Council, to 
create a Framework Agreement for the provision of buildings and construction services for 
disabled adaptations. 

Proposed Decision Maker (Decision Date): Cabinet (24 Apr 2019) 

Date notice first published: 26 March 2019 

(If Key or Private, decision cannot be until after 23 April 2019) 

Open/Exempt: Open 

Relevant reports/background papers which are/will be available: 
 Invitation to Tender document, Carlisle CC. 

Lead Officer: David Bradley, Principal Housing Standards Officer 
david.bradley@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Assistant Director: Assistant Director Strategic Development 

Portfolio Holder: Housing, People and Innovation Portfolio Holder (Cllr Jonathan Brook) 

 
 

Non-Key Budget and Policy Framework Decision - 2018/19 Revenue and Capital Carry 
Forwards and Contributions to and from Reserves * NEW * 

  
To consider and approve carry-forwards of unused budgets from 2018/19 to 2109/20 and to 
approve contributions to and from reserves for 2018/19. 

Proposed Decision Maker (Decision Date): Council (21 May 2019) 

Also considered by/to be considered by: Cabinet (24 Apr 2019) 

Date notice first published: 26 March 2019 

(If Key or Private, decision cannot be until after 23 April 2019) 

Open/Exempt: Open 

Relevant reports/background papers which are/will be available: 
 2018/19 Corporate Financial Monitoring, 2018/19 Budget report approved Council 27 
February 2018, 2019/20 Budget report approved Council 26 February 2019. 

Lead Officer: Helen Smith, Financial Services Manager h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Assistant Director: Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer) 

Portfolio Holder: Finance Portfolio Holder (Cllr Andrew Jarvis) 

 
 

Page 22



 

5 

 Key Decision - South Lakeland District Council Homelessness Strategy 2019 - 2024 

  
The South Lakeland District Council Homelessness Strategy will help to address 
homelessness in the District through prevention, increasing the supply of settled 
accommodation and providing support to those that need it. 

Proposed Decision Maker (Decision Date): Cabinet (05 Jun 2019) 

Also considered by/to be considered by: Overview and Scrutiny Committee (26 Apr 2019) 

Date notice first published: 8 January 2019 

(If Key or Private, decision cannot be until after 5 February 2019) 

Open/Exempt: Open 

Relevant reports/background papers which are/will be available: 
 South Lakeland District Council Homelessness Review 2018. 

Lead Officer: Julie Jackson, Principal Housing Strategy Officer 
j.jackson@southlakeland.gov.uk 

Assistant Director: Assistant Director Strategic Development 

Portfolio Holder: Housing, People and Innovation Portfolio Holder (Cllr Jonathan Brook) 

 
 

Page 23



Page 24



 

 

 

 
 
 

South Lakeland District Council 

Cabinet  

24 April 2019 

2018/19 Final Accounts Report - Carry 
Forwards and Re-profiling requests 

 

 

 

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 
 

1.1 This report presents Revenue car ry  forward  and Capital re-profiling 
requests relating to 2018/19. Once approved, this will enable the services 
identified to be delivered in 2019/20.  

 
2.1 Recommendation 

 
2.2 It is recommended that Cabinet  

 
(1) consider and approve the revenue carry forwards  at Appendix 1 

 
(2) approve the re-profiling of expenditure and associated budgets for the 

capital schemes from 2018/19 into 2019/20 at Appendix 2 
 

 
3.1 Background and Proposals 

 
Revenue Carry-forwards 

 
3.2 The total of Revenue carry forward requests into 2019/20 is £0.51m. These are 

made up of a number of requests as detailed in Appendix 1 and as all of 
them are below £100k they can be approved by Cabinet. The largest areas 
relate to  

 £72.3k on the Grange Lido project 

 £55k due to implementation delays on Economic Development projects. 

 £65.7k on schemes supported by Homelessness Grant, partly due to the 
late receipt of grant in the year

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Andrew Jarvis – Finance Portfolio Holder 
 

REPORT FROM: Helen Smith – Finance Lead Specialist 
(Section 151 Officer) 

REPORT AUTHOR: Peter Hunt – Interim Chief Accountant 

WARDS: All 

FORWARD PLAN: Not applicable 

Page 25

Item No.8



 

 

 

 

 
3.3 The Budget report for 2019/20, approved on 26 February 2019, approved the carry-

forward of £59k on the Tour of Britain Cycle race and flood risk assessments. These 
carry-forwards are required to fund expenditure already included in the 2019/20 
budgets and are included in the figures set out in Appendix 1. 

 
3.4 The approval of the carry forwards will enable the work that was planned in 2018/19 

to be delivered in 2019/20. Carry forward amounts have been reviewed against the 
draft service expenditure to ensure that at corporate, directorate and service levels 
there is sufficient budget to support the requests.  This position may change as the 
Statement of Accounts and year end position are finalised. Any corrections required 
will be reported back to Cabinet and Council within the out-turn report in July 2019. 

 
3.5 Although the carry forward of budgets is an important flexibility within the financial 

procedure rules, the services identified need to be delivered, as part of meeting the 
Council Plan. To support this, spend of the carry forward amounts will be reported on 
as part of the quarterly budget monitoring, throughout 2019/20. 

 
3.6 The underlying reasons for carrying budget forward will be reviewed with managers. 

Where improvements could be made to the method of profiling budgets, these will 
be fed in to the 2019/20 budget process. 
 
 

Capital programme Re-profiling 
 

3.7 Variations on spending on the Capital programme usually reflect changes in the 
progress of individual schemes. As these schemes span a number of years any 
variation needs to be reflected in an up-date to the profiled spending in the Capital 
programme. 

 
3.8 Appendix 2 shows those  Capital Schemes in the 2018/19 Capital programme 

where expenditure varies to the approved Capital programme. To enable these 
schemes to continue and be completed it is necessary to vary the Capital programme 
in 2019/20 to reflect the variations in phasing of expenditure. The total for re-profiling 
is £3,144m. The Cabinet have delegated powers to approve these changes in 
accordance with Para 8.2 of the Financial Procedure Rules. 

 
3.9 Although some of the underspend relates to third parties, there is still a significant 

amount directly in the control of the Council. Processes will continue to be reviewed to 
minimise any future yearly underspends. 

 
 

4.0 Consultation 

4.1  Senior Management Team, Budget Holders and Portfolio Holders have been 
consulted in the preparation of this report. 

 

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1  There are no alternative options presented; Members could decide to not approve 
some or all of the proposed carry forwards or re-profiling. This would result in the 
specific scheme not being delivered but would on the other hand increase unallocated 
reserve balances that could be used for other purposes. 

Page 26



 

 

 

6.0 Links to Council Properties 

6.1 Approval of the carry forwards and re-profiling will allow the services set out in the 
appendices to be delivered. 

 7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement  

7.1 The Financial, Resources and Procurement implications are reflected in the report. 

Human Resources 

7.2 There are no additional Human Resources implications of the report 

Legal 

7.3 There are no Legal implications of the report. 

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 
 

7.4 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? No 

 

7.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: 
There are no additional Health, Social, Economic or Environmental impacts as a 
result of the report. 

 

7.6 Summary of health, social, economic and environmental impacts: Carry forwards 
relate to activities already approved as part of the 2018/19 budget. 
 

Equality and Diversity 
 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No 
 

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: 
There are no additional Equality or Diversity impacts as a result of the report. 

 

7.9 Summary of equality and diversity impacts: Carry forwards relate to activities 
already approved as part of the 2018/19 budget. 

 

 Risk 
 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

Delay with approval of 
carry forwards and re-
profiling impairs 
service delivery. 

Ability to deliver Council Plan 
objectives in year is reduced. 

Efficient and timely system 
of carry forward and re-
profiling approvals. 

Carry forwards and 
re-profiling approved 
prior to final 
closedown position is 
established. 

Too much or too little budget is 
transferred into the new year, 
inhibiting budget manager’s 
ability to deliver. 

Efficient and timely system 
of carry forward and re-
profiling approvals that 
builds on monthly 
/quarterly monitoring. 

 

 

 

Page 27



 

 

 

Contact Officers 

Peter Hunt, Interim Chief Accountant, peter.hunt@southlakeland.gov.uk, 01539 793259 

Appendices Attached to this Report 
 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

Appendix 1 Revenue Carry Forward Requests 

Appendix 2 Capital Re-profiling Requests  

 
 

Background Documents Available 
 

Name of Background 
document 

Where it is available 

2018/19 budget book https://tinyurl.com/y5e6rj55 

Quarter 3 budget monitoring https://tinyurl.com/y5e6rj55 

 
Council Constitution https://tinyurl.com/gth4cva 

 
 

Tracking Information 
 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 5/4/2019 

Section 151 Officer 5/4/2019 

Monitoring Officer 5/4/2019 

SMT N/A 

 
Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director 5/4/2019 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder 5/4/2019 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

Page 28

mailto:peter.hunt@southlakeland.gov.uk
https://tinyurl.com/y5e6rj55
https://tinyurl.com/y5e6rj55
https://tinyurl.com/gth4cva


Appendix 1

Ref
Budget 

Code
Service Area Portfolio £k Comment

1 GMM Members Health and Well Being 25.0

Underspend due to unclaimed Members' 

allowances £25k. Unclaimed allowances at year-

end to be transferred to an financial resilience 

reserve to help improve personal financial 

resilience, (agreed by Council Feb 2019).

2 ERI Information Services
Housing People and 

Innovation
32.0

Net underspend on vacant posts £35k, part offset 

by corresponding shortfall on Eden shared service 

recharge £14k; underspend on Disaster Recovery 

£11k, due to enhancements not required (carry 

forward request to part fund two fixed term ICT 

Officers posts).

25.0

Underspend on Tour of Britain cycling event £25k 

due to not hosting a start or finish stage, request 

carry forward to fund bid to host a finish stage in 

next year's TOB (approved by Council Q3 budget 

report).

30.0

Underspend on Brewery Arts Centre funding £30k 

due to project delay, require carry forward to 

complete (Cabinet Decision CEX/67 01/10/14 - 

contribution to technical design work Kendal 

Brewery).

4 ECC
Strategic Planning 

Admin
Economy and Assets 83.8

Underspend on Grange Lido project £72.3k: 

underspend on markets review £11.5k, require 

carry forward to complete. 

5 GCH
Community Housing 

Fund
Finance 37.4

Net underspend on vacant post £25.2k, transport 

£3k, and consultants £9.2k due to delay in scheme 

implementation (Council approved any 

underspend to be transferred back to Community 

Housing Fund reserve, to be delegated to 

Directors).

6 GCV
Conservation 

Environment
Culture and Leisure 15.4

Net underspend on Burton in Kendal Buildings and 

Public Realm scheme due to project delay, carry 

forward required to complete ongoing design 

works in 2019/20.

7 GED Econ Dev Economy and Assets 65.0

Underspend on Econ Dev projects (including 

Lancs and Souths Lakes project, and Kendal 

Masterplan) £55k due to implementation delays; 

undserspend on ERDF survey works £10k to be 

completed in 2019/20 (any underspends to be 

transferred to Econ Dev reserve, delegated to 

Directors).

8 GHL Town View Fields Hostel
Housing People and 

Innovation
10.0

Changes improve access. Work in scope changes 

have delayed installation, require carry forward to 

complete work. 

9 GHM Homelessness
Housing People and 

Innovation
65.7

Underspend on Flexible Homelessness grant 

£39.1k, carry forward may be required to fund 

implementation of service provision review; 

Homelessness service will require a complete 

review to determine future service provision, and 

any budget requirements will need to be approved 

by Council. Additional MHCLG grants received 

March £26.6k for the prention of homelesssness, 

and to help deliver statutory duties.    

10 GHT Housing Standards
Housing People and 

Innovation
21.4

Underspend on stock condition survey due to 

implementation delays £22k, require carry forward 

to complete.

Revenue Carry Forward Requests 2018/19

3 GCG Community Grants Finance

Page 29



Ref
Budget 

Code
Service Area Portfolio £k Comment

34.0

Underspend on flood risk assessments £34k due 

to delays in Environment Agency Flood modelling, 

carry forward has been approved by Council Q3 

budget report.

28.9

Neighbourhood planning grant underspend £8.9k, 

and new grant received in March £20k, carry 

forward required to provide support to local  parish 

plans and referendum.

12 GOT
Environmental Health 

Other
Environment 2.8

Grant received from CCC to fund bike stands for 

joint project action from the health and wellbeing 

forum. Project delayed due to Customer Connect, 

requuire carry forward to complete.

13 GCL Community Leisure Culture and Leisure 15.0

Underspend £15k due to County Council 

partnership projects discontinued (British Cycling, 

sports development, and active travel), propose 

carry forward to fund hire of replacement recycling 

vehicle due to accident damage.

14 GPK Parks Environment 1.0

Received grant in January from Tesco for bluebell 

planting at Rothay Park, require carry forward to 

complete grant scheme.

15 GTG Street Cleansing Environment 18.3

Grant received in March from MHCLG to fund 

High Street Clean Up projects. Carry forward 

required to complete projects in April and May.

510.7

£k

25.0

87.0

361.6

37.1

510.7

£k

Carry forwards approved Council February 2019

Community Grants GCG 25.0

Local Plans GLP 34.0

59.0

Personal Financial Resilience 25.0

Economic Development Fund 65.0

Community Housing Fund 37.4

510.7

Summary by Assistant Director:

11 GLP Local Plans
Housing People and 

Innovation

Other Carry forwards to be transferred to Carry-forward 

Reserve
324.3

Balances to be transferred to reserves

Total Revenue Carry Forwards 

Resources

Policy and Performance

Strategic Development

Neighbourhood Services

Total Revenue Carry Forward Requests

Summary of Requests by Funding

Page 30



Appendix 2

Ref Code Service Area
Area (AD) 

2018/19
Portfolio £K Comment

1 KCH01
Community 

Housing Fund

Strategic 

Development

Housing & 

Innovation
470.0 Awaiting legal agreements, to be spent by the end of quarter 2 2019/20.

2 KAH10 Affordable Homes
Stategic 

Development

Housing & 

Innovation
119.0 Awaiting legal agreements, to be spent by the end of quarter 1 2019/20.

3 KIP01
Locally Important 

Projects

Strategic 

Development

Housing & 

Innovation/ 

Culture & 

Leisure

208.1
LIPS grants approved in principle, awaiting project delivery by recipient 

organisations.

4 KEP52
Disabled Toilet 

Improvements

Strategic 

Development
Environment 10.0

Currently working on the funding agreements and payments will be made once 

feasibility studies completed.

5 KMR31
Festival 

Infrastructure

Neighbourhood 

Services

Culture & 

Leisure
24.0 Festival banners for lamp posts in Kendal to be delivered 2019/20.

6 KNM* Play Areas
Neighbourhood 

Services
Environment 335.8

Play scheme underway not yet complete at Millerground (£47.7k). Schemes at 

Hallgarth (£24.9k), Abbot Hall (£5k), Yew Tree (£55k), Maryfell (£61.5k), Rayrigg 

Meadow (£110k) and others (£31.7k) prepared for 2019/20 start, budgets reflect 

funding received. 

7 KPY42
Car Park 

machines update

Neighbourhood 

Services
Economy 137.4

Works completed but resolution of outstanding issues required before 

acceptance and payment.

8 KPY44
Town & Car Park 

signs

Neighbourhood 

Services
Economy 11.7 Procurement in progress.

Capital Re-profiling Requests 2018/19 

P
age 31



Ref Code Service Area
Area (AD) 

2018/19
Portfolio £K Comment

Capital Re-profiling Requests 2018/19 

9 KLR31
Nobles Rest park 

improvements

Neighbourhood 

Services
Environment 6.9 Scheme substantially complete but minor works to take place in 2019/20.

10 KLL18

Cockshott Point 

entrance 

improvements

Neighbourhood 

Services
Environment 1.5 LIPS funded scheme to be completed in 2019/20.

11 KFL01 Footway Lighting
Neighbourhood 

Services
Environment 40.7 In negotiation with Cumbria CC for work to go ahead in 2019/20.

12 KSC91
Recycling Bins 

and Boxes

Neighbourhood 

Services
Environment 52.3 Programme of replacement agreed for community need.

13 KSC91 Vehicles
Neighbourhood 

Services
Environment 59.7

Carry forward covers purchase of tractor and lake wardens' boat engine. 

Contract for engine with legal.

14 KCD01 Castle Dairy
Strategic 

Development

Culture & 

Leisure
4.0

Original contractor has gone into liquidation but final payment to liquidator or 

third party will be required to rectify any defects identified.

15 KLH02
Coro Hall 

alterations

Strategic 

Development
Finance 79.7

Business case from UCE has been received but payment is pending assessment 

of case and funding agreement being drawn up.

16 KMR21
Kendal Museum 

alterations

Strategic 

Development

Culture & 

Leisure
85.0 Report being drawn up to Cabinet to approve payment to museum.

17 KMR34 Kendal Castle
Strategic 

Development
Environment 41.0

Awaiting feedback from CCC and Historic England before tender and work can 

progress.

18 KRE53
Kendal Public 

Realm

Strategic 

Development
Economy 15.7 Awaiting results of experimental traffic order to complete project.

19 KRE66

Grange 

promenade 

structural works

Strategic 

Development
Environment 96.0 Following assessments and surveys work on site starting Jan 2020.

P
age 32



Ref Code Service Area
Area (AD) 

2018/19
Portfolio £K Comment

Capital Re-profiling Requests 2018/19 

20 KXB27

Energy Savings 

Building 

enhancement

Strategic 

Development
Economy 139.2 LSH currently undertaking review for works to be done in 2019/20.

21 KMR33
Braithwaite Fold 

caravan park

Strategic 

Development
Economy 186.8

Planning permission delayed due to LDNPA requesting extra information. Once 

approved project will commence.

22 KPY45
SLH Car Park 

structural repair

Strategic 

Development
Economy 370.4 Work delayed due to weather but contractor on standby.

23 KPY48
Parkside Road car 

park

Neighbourhood 

Services
Economy 153.8 Planning permission approval caused delay. 

24 KPY46
Car park 

resurfacing

Neighbourhood 

Services
Economy 80.3 Project covers many car parks, works to continue at Grasmere during 2019/20.

25 KPE18 Towpath Trail
Strategic 

Development
Environment 120.0

Funding agreement drafted and sent to CCC - awaiting response before payment 

is made.

26 KIT* IT  Budgets
Performance & 

Innovation
Economy 295.0

Customer Connect project will deliver mobile working (£120k), digital innovation 

(£168.3) and other IT replacement on-going commitments (£6.7k).

Total 3,144.0

£k

SM 295.0

IH 1,944.9

SR 904.1

Total 3,144.0

Performance & Innovation

Strategic Development

Neighbourhood Services

Summary by Assistant Director:

P
age 33



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 34



South Lakeland District Council 

Cabinet 

Wednesday, 24 April 2019 

Cumbria Wide Framework Agreement for Disabled 
Adaptations 

 

Portfolio:  Cllr Jonathan Brook - Deputy Leader and Housing, People and 
Innovation Portfolio Holder 

Report from:  Director Customer and Commercial Services 

Report Author: David Bradley – Principal Housing Standards Officer 

Wards:  All Wards 

Forward Plan: Key Decision included in the Forward Plan as published on 26th March 
2019  

 

1.0 Expected Outcome 

1.1 To participate in a new Framework Agreement for two years from 1 May 2019 to be 
used to enable the delivery of specific Disabled Facilities adaptations across the 
District (a minimum of 80 per year). 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 It is recommended that Cabinet:- 

(1) Approves the Council’s participation in the Cumbria Wide Agreement 
for the delivery of specific Disabled Facilities Adaptations 

(2) Delegates authority to the Director of Customer and Commercial 
Services, in consultation with the Deputy/Monitoring Officer, to 
negotiate the terms of, and enter into, an extension to the existing 
framework agreement. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 The Council has a statutory duty to provide Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs). These 
consist of adaptations to the homes of disabled and vulnerable people to enable 
them to live independently. The Council has approved a DFG Policy which also 
includes discretionary grants. 

3.2       The Council has participated in a framework agreement for the past two years with 
Carlisle, Allerdale and Eden Councils which has provided value for money, high 
quality adaptations. The framework allows speedier adaptations because the 
schedule of work and price have been agreed in advance and there is no need to 
obtain two quotes. The client does, however, continue to have the choice to select 
their preferred contractor or contractors to provide comparable quotes but this 
seldom occurs. 

3.3 The Framework Agreement consists of five lots for Disabled Adaptations (level 
access showers, door widening, modular ramps, shower toilet and heating). On 

Page 35

Item No.9



behalf of the Cumbria councils, Carlisle City Council will undertake a procurement 
exercise to select up to six contractors for each lot. The framework will enable DFG 
applications to be processed quicker using approved contractors. The existing 
framework is due to end in April 2019, hence the need for a new procurement 
exercise to be undertaken for a further two year period with the option to extend for a 
further two years.   

3.4 It is proposed that, pending the completion of the new framework agreement, the 
authority enters into a short extension of up to 6 months to the current agreement in 
order to enable the delivery of DFG adaptations. 

3.5 In 2017/18 the Council undertook 79 adaptations under the framework. At least 80 
per year are expected over the next two years (this figure could be substantially 
higher depending on demand).  

4.0 Consultation 

4.1 Existing Framework contractors and other local contractors have been consulted 
about the procurement exercise. 

5.0 Alternative Options 

5.1 The Council could choose to revert to the old system of obtaining a minimum of two 
quotes for each adaptation. This is not recommended as applications would take 
longer to process, may not provide value for money and the service would not meet 
internal audit standards. 

6.0 Links to Council Priorities 

6.1 Homes to meet needs. 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 There is an existing capital budget for DFGs. The Framework provides value for 
money as cost is a key factor in the tender process. 

7.2 The Council’s Procurement Manager has advised that Cabinet approval is required to 
participate in the Cumbria Wide Framework.    

7.3       The Capital Programme approved in February is £661,000 for 2019/20 of which 
approximately £550,000 was spent on the framework . 

Human Resources 

7.4 Not applicable. 

Legal 

7.5 There is a statutory duty to provide DFGs.  

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 

8.1 Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment? No – this was undertaken as part of the approval for the Council’s DFG 
Policy. 

Equality and Diversity 

9.1 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No - this was undertaken as part 
of the approval for the Council’s DFG Policy. 

Page 36



Risk 

Risk Consequence Controls required 

That value for money is not 
obtained if the Framework is not 
utilised. 

There may be insufficient 
funds to cover the demand 
for adaptations. 

Approve the participation 
in the Framework 
Agreement. 

That the DFG process will take 
longer to complete. 

Applicants will need to wait 
longer for adaptations. 

Approve the participation 
in the Framework 
Agreement. 

Contact Officers 

David Bradley, Principal Housing Standards Officer, 01539 793216, 
david.bradley@southlakeland.gov.uk  

Background Documents Available 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Draft Invitation to Tender – 
Appointment to a Cumbria Wide 
Framework Agreement for the 
Provision of work on Disabled 
Adaptations (Carlisle City 
Council). 

At the Council’s offices at South Lakeland House, 
Kendal. 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent 

Legal Services 10 April 2019 

Section 151 Officer 10 April 2019 

Monitoring Officer 10 April 2019 

SMT N/A 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Assistant Director 10 April 2019 

Human Resources Manager N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

 

Page 37

mailto:david.bradley@southlakeland.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38


	Agenda
	2 Cabinet Executive Decisions
	3 Delegated Executive Decisions
	7 Forward Plan
	Plan

	8 2018/19 Final Accounts Report - Carry Forwards and Re-profiling Requests
	201819 Final Accounts Report - Carry Forwards and Re-profiling Requests - Appendix 1
	201819 Final Accounts Report - Carry Forwards and Re-profiling Requests - Appendix 2

	9 Cumbria Wide Framework Agreement for Disabled Adaptations

